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ATlANTA FEDERAL CENTER 

61 FORSYTH SfRr:H 
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~PR 102012 


CERTIFIED MAIL 
RETCRN RECEIPT REQUESTED 

Mr. Keith Collins 
President 
Milkco, Inc. 
220 Deaverview Road 
Asheville, North Carolina 28806 

RE: 	 Milke<>, Inc. 
Consent Agreement and Final Order 
Docket No, EPCRA-04-2012-2030(b) 

Dear Mr. Collins: 

Enclosed plea'Ie find an executed (;OPY of' the Consent Agreement and Final Order that resolves the 
Emergency Planning and Community Right-tn-Know Act of 1986 matter (Docket No, EPCRA-04-2012
2030(b)) involving Milkoo, Inc. The CAFQ was filed with the Regional He.nng Clerk, as required by 
40 C.P.R. Part 22 and became effective on the date of the liling, 

Also enc1osed~ please find a copy ofthe '"Notice ofSecurities and Exchange Commission Registrants' 
Duty to Di$lose Environmental Legal Proceedings." This document puts you on notice of your 
potential duty to disclose to the Security and Exchange Commission any environmenml enforcement 
actions taken by the flnvironmental Protection Agency. Ifyou have any questions with regards to the 
SEC~s environmentai disclosure requirements, you may refcr to the ~ontact phone number at the bottom 
of the SEC Noti~. 

Ifyou have any qllcSlioa., please call Ms. Mary Beech at (404) 562-9669, 

PCRA Enforcement Section 

Enclosures 

1r.1i,.;ni)! Address \VAl) .. hltp:IlWWW<4p.9.g.~·l¥ 
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L Nature oftbe A(..1ion 

1. This is a civil penalty proceeding pursuant to Section 325 of the Emergency 
Planning and Community Right·to·Know Act (EPCRA), 42 U.S.C. § 11045, and pursuant to the 
Consolidated Rules ofPractice Gove011ng the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties and 
the RevocationiTennination or Suspension ofPermits (Consolidated Rules), codified at 40 
C.F.R. Part 22. Complainant is the Director ofthe Air, Pestiddes and Toxies Management 
Divisio~ Region 4. United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). Respondent is 
Milkeo, lnc. 

2. The authority to take action under Section 325 of EPCRA, 42U.S.C. § 1l045, is 
ve.<;jted in the Administrator of EPA. The Administrator of EPA has delegated this authority 
und<'r EPCRA to the Regional Administrators by EPA Delegation 22·3·A, dated May 11, 1994. 
The Regional Administrator, Region 4, has redclegated this authority to the Director, Air, 
Pesticides and Toxics Management Division. by EPA Region 4 Delegation 22-3-A, dated 
November 8, 1994. Pursuant to that delegntion~ the Director of the Air, Pesticides and Toxies 
Management Division has the authority to commence an enforcement action as the Complainant 
in this matter. 

3. Complainant and Respondent have conferred for the purpose of settlement 
pursuant to 40 C,F.R. § 22.18 and desire to resolve this matter and settle the allegations 
dcsl.-nbtxl herein without a formal hearing. Therefore. without the taking of any evidence or 
testImony, the making of any argument, or the adjudication of any issue in this matter, and in 
accordance with 40 C,F~R. § 22.13(b) and 22.18(h), this Con,""t Agreement and Final Order 
(CAFO) wJi1 simultaneously commence and conclude this matter. 

II. Preliminary Sti:;\tements 

4. Respondent is Milkco, Inc., a corponltion doing bm~incss in the State of};orth 
Carolina. 

5. Respondent is a "penron" as defined in Section 329(7) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.c. 
§ 11049(7). 



6. Respondent owns and operates a "faci1ity" as that term is defined by Section 
329(4) of EPCRA, 42 u.s,c' § 11049(4), 

7. Respondent's facility is located at 220 Deaverview Road, Asheville, North 
Carolina. 

ilL !lPNs Allegation of Violation 

8, Section 312 of EPCRA, 42 U,S,C, § 11022, and the regulations fuund at 40 
CF.R. Part 370, provide that the owner or operator ofa facility that is required to prepare or 
have available a Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS) for hazardou, chemicals under the 
Occupational Safety and Healtll Act ufl970 (OSHA) and regulations promulgated under that 
Act, shall submit to the Local Emergency Planning Committe" (LEPC), the State Emergency 
Response Com.m1ssion (SERe), and the fire department with jurisdiction over the facility on or 
before March 1 annually, a completed emergency and hazardous chemical inventory fulm (Tier I 
or Tier ll) as described in 40 C.F.R, Part 370. containing the information required by that part for 
hazardou., chemicals preS\IDt at the facility at anyone time in the c<tlendar year in amounts equal 
to or !,;,'Tcater than 10,000 pounds and containing the infonnation required by that part for 
extremely hazardous substanc~ (EHS) present at the facility at anyone time in amounts equal to 
or greater than the threshold planning quantity (TPQ) or 500 pounds, whichever is le'Ss, 

9. At some time during the calendar years 2010, 2009 and 2008, sulfuric acid was 
present at the facility in an amount equal to or greater than 500 pounds. 

10. Sulfuric acid is an "extremely haza.rdou.~ substanceH as delined under Section 
329(3) of EPCRA, 42 U,S,C, § 11049(3), fur which Respondent is required to prepare or have 
available an MSDS under OSHA at its facility. 

11. Respondent failed to submit a oompleted Emergency and Ha:lardous Chemical 
Inventory Fonn for sulfuric acid to the SERe, the LEPC, and fire department with;urisdiction 
overthc facility for calendar years 2010, 2009 and 2008 by March I of the tbllowing year, 

12. EPA alleges that Respondent violated the reporting requiremcnbi of Section 3 i 2 
of EPeRA, 42 U,S.c. § 11022, at its facility for calendar years 2010, 2009 and 2008 and i. 
therefore subject to the assessment ofpenalties under Seerion 325 of EPCRA, 42 U,S,C. 
§ 11045, 

13. PUf5uantto Section 325(c) ofEPeRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11045(c), and 40 C,F,R, Part 
19, EPA may assess a penalty ofnot more than :1\37,500 lor each violation of Section 312 that 
oc..:urred after January 12, 2009. Each day a violation of Section 312 continues constitutes a 
separate violation. Civil jlC'tl!llties under Seerion 325(c) ufEPCRA, 42 U,S,c. § 11045(c), may 
be asse~ed by Administrative Order. 
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14. For the purposes of this CAfO. Respondent admits the jurii:ldictional allegations 
set out above but neither admits nor denies the tactual allegations set out above. 

15. Respondent waives any right to contest the allegations and its right to appeal the 
proposed final order aCCQrnpanying the Consent Agreement 

16. Respondent consents to the a..,sessrnent of nnd agrees to pay the civil penalty as: 
set forth in this CAFO. 

17. Respondent certifies that as ofthe date onts execution of this CAFO, it is in 
compliance with all relevant reqtl1rements ofEPCRA at the facility, 

18. Cumpliance with this CAFO shall resolve the allegations of violations contained 
herein. This CAFO shall not otherwise .n""t .ny liability of Respondent to the United Stales 
other than as expn:sr:;cd herein. Neither EPA nor Complainant waives any right to bring an 
enforcement action against Respondent for a violation of any federal or state statute, regulation 
or pennit; to initiate an action for imminent and substantia! endangerment: or to pursue criminal 
enfOrcement. 

19. Complainant and Respondent agree to settle this matter by their execution of this 
CAPO. The parties agree that tho: settlement of this matter is in the public interest and that this 
CAFO is consli)ient with the appHcable requirements of EPCRA. 

V. EiQ.al Order 

20. Respondent shall pay a civil penalty ofTWENTY SIX THOUSAND THREE 
HUNDRED nVENTY FIVE DOLLARS ($26,325), plus $100.32 in interest lor the violations 
alleged in Section III. The total Penalty amount to be paid. including interest. is $26.425.32, 
Payment shall be paid in four (4) quarterly payments, according to the following schedule., with 
the first payment of $6,60633 to be paid within 30 days of filing of the CAFO: 

I>1 payment due 30 days after the CAFO is filed $6,606.33 
2"" payment due 120days aft,,'I" lhe eAFO is tiled $6,606.33 
3" payment due 240 days after the CAFO is filed $6.606.33 
4" payment due 360 day, after the CAFO is filed $6,60633 

21. Respondent shall pay the penalty by forwarding a cashier's or certified check, 
payable to: "Treasurer, United States ofAmerica," to one of the follo'hing addresses: 

BY MAIL IF OVERNIGHT 
US Enviromm,'lltul U.s. Bank 
Protection Agency ('nwernmcnt Lockbox 979077 US 
Fines and Penalties EPA Fines & Penalties 
Cincinnati Finance Center 1005 Convention PJaza 
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http:6.606.33
http:6,606.33
http:6,606.33
http:26.425.32


P.O. Box 979077 SL-MO-C2-GL 

St Louis, MO 63197-9000 St Louis, MO 63101 


(314) 418-1028 

The check shall reference on its face the rutmc and the Docl;;ct Number of the CAFO, 

22. At the time of payment, Respondent shall send a separate copy of the check, and a 
written statement that payment has been made in accordance with tllis CAFO. to the fullowing 
persons at the following ad~ses: 

Regional Hearing Clerk 
lJ.S. BPA, Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

Mary Beech 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
Air. Pesticides & Toxics Management Division 
61 FOC3ythStrcet, S.W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

Saundi Wilson 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
Office of Environmental Acoountabiiity 
61 Forsyth Street, S, W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

23. For the purposes of state and fcdera1 income taxes, Respondent shall not be 
entitled, and agrees not to altempt, tv claim a deduction for any civil penalty payment made 
pursuant to this CAFO. Any attempt by Respondent lu deduct any such payments shall 
constitute a violation of tills CAFO, 

24. IfRei\pondent fails to malw one of the installment payments in accordance with 
the schedule set furth aoove, and if such payment is not made within 30 days after the due date, 
then payment plus all subsequent payments (the entire unpaid balance) and all accrued. interest 
shall become nruncdiately due and payahle 00 the 31 st day from such dut': date. In addition, 
Respondent shall be liable for and shall pay administrative handling charges and late payment 
penalty charges as des;...1ibt."d below in the event of any such fuilure or default. 

25. Further, if R.....'Spvndcnt fails to pay the installment payments in accordance with 
the schedule set forth above, EPA mny refer the debt to a collection agency, a credit reporting 
agency, or to the Department ofJustice for filjng ofa ooUcction action in the appropriate United 
States District Court. In any such collection a,,1ion, the validlty, amount, and appropriateness of 
the assessed penalty and of this CAFO shaH nnt be subject to "",iew. 
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26. Notwithstanding Respondent's agreement to pay the assessed civil penalty 1n 
accordance with the Instal1mcnt schedule 1$Ct furth above, Respondent may pay the entire dvil 
penalty 0/'$26,325 within thirty (30) calendar days alle'r the date on which a copy of this CAFO 
is mailed or hand-delivered to Respondent and.. thereby, avoid the payment ofintcre;;t pursuant 
to 40 C,F.R. § 13.11(a). In addition, Respondent may, at any time after commencement of 
payments under the lnstaHment schedule; elect to pay the entire principal balance remaining.. 
together with interest au;rued up to the date of such full payment. 

27, Pursuant to 31 U.S.C § 3717, EPA is: entitled to assess interest and penalties Oli 

debts owed to the United States and a charge to cover the cost ofprocessing and handling a 
delinquent claim. Interest will therefore begin to accrue on Ute dvil penalty from the effective 
date of this CA FO if the penalty is not paid by the date required. Interest will be assessed at the 
rate established by the Secretary ofTreasary pursuant to 31 U.S.C, § 3717. A charge will be 
assessed to cover the costs ofdebt collection., including processing and handling costs and 
attorney fees. In adUition~ a penalty charge will be assessed on any portion of the debt that 
rt.'1Uains delinquent more than ninety (90) days after payment is due. 

28, Complainant and Respondent ~hall bear their own costs and attorney fees in this 
matter, 

29. This CAFO shall be binding upon the Respondent. its succes.llors and ru-lsigns. 

30. Tne following individual is authorized to receive service for EPA in this 
proceeding: 

Caron B. Falcom,,'T 
U,S. EPA, Region 4 
Air, Pesticides & Toxic Management Division 
61 Fo",yth Street, S.W. 
Atlant" Georgi. 30303 
(404) 562-8451 

31. Each undersigned represt.'1ttati ve of the parties to this CAFO certifies that he or 
she is fully authorized by the party represented to enter into this CAFO and legally bind that 
party to it. 
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VI. Effe\..'tive Date 

32. The effective date of this CAFO shall be the date upon wbich the CAFO is filed 
with the Regtonal Hearing Clerk. 

AGREED AND CONSENTED TO: 

_DateMZ4J... 

(Typed or Pnnted) 

Cfyped or Printed) 

By: ;:;Bf..ev-er~IY:!:H#.B~an.(2is~ter:.lr.,~ir~ecf:;tJoll.r(MFD.te2~ 
Air, Pesticides & Toxics 

U.S. Environmental Pmtectiol Agency 

Management Division 

-Ii.. 
APPROVED AND SO ORDERED tbi. It! day OI~""",L",-__,, 2012. 

'&"___ 8 ~ 
Susan B. Schuh 
Regionalludicial Officer 



CERTIFICATE OF SER,YICE 


I hereby certify that I have this day served a true and correct copy ofthe foregoing Consent Agreement 

and Final Order, In the Matter of: MLlkeo, Inc., .Docket!'!o ...EPCAA,.(J4·20 12·2030(b), on !he parties 

listed below in the manner indicated: 

Caron B. Falconer 
G.S. EPA, Region 4 
Air, Pesticides & Toxies Management Division 
61 Fon;yth Street 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

Robert Caplan 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
Office of Environmental Accountability 
61 F omylh Street 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

lvlr. Keith Collins 
President, .Milkeo, Inc. 
220 Deavcrview Road 
Asheville. North Carolina 28806 

(Via EPA's internal mail) 

(Via EPA's internal mail) 

(Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested) 

Date: d~~pSatr~i~Ci~'~A~.t;;utoc~l.£egiOnal Hearing Clerk 
United States Environmental 
Protection Agency, Region 4 
Atlanta Federal Center 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta, GA 30303 
(404) 562·9511 


